
 
Board of Trustees April 21, 2020 Doc. #1 

 

AGENDA 

Board of Trustees 

April 21, 2020 

7:00pm  

 

1.  Call to Order/Review of Agenda M. Poost 1:00 Doc. #1 

2.  Public Comment M. Poost 5.00  

3.  Approval of Minutes 

February 18, 2020 

M. Poost 5.00  

Doc. #2 

4.  Treasurer’s Reports 

Off Warrant 

• March 12- April 17 ($432,651.53)  

Warrant  

• April 16, 2020 ($31,664.12) 

P&L/Balance Sheet(s) 

• April 17, 2020 (29%) P&L 

• April 16, 2020 Balance Sheet 

R. West 5.00  

 

Doc. #3 

 

Doc. #4 

 

Doc. #5 

Doc. #6  

5.  Director’s Report 

Continuity of Service Plan #2 

 

J. Dugas Hughes 10.00 Docs. #7  

& #8 

6.   Committee Reports 

Admin 

Draft Motion: Approve the Revised Emergency 

Closing Policy 

Service  

 

L. Oudekerk 

 

 

M. Harris 

 

5.00 

 

 

5.00 

 

 

Docs. #9 

&10 

 

 

7.  Liaison Reports 

• Friends of The Library 

• Town of East Greenbush 

• Rensselaer County 

• UHLS Board 

 

L. Reyner 

H. Kennedy 

T. Grant 

M. Poost 

 

                5.00 

5.00 

5.00 

5.00 

 

 



Board of Trustees April 21, 2020 Doc. #1 
 

 

8.  Personnel- NONE J. Dugas Hughes 0.00  

9.  New Business 

 

M. Poost 

 

5. 00 

 

Do 

 



EAST GREENBUSH COMMUNITY LIBRARY BOARD MEETING       DRAFT    

FEBRUARY 18, 2020 
 
In attendance:  Michael Poost – President 

Kevin McCann – Vice President 
Bob West – Treasurer 
Lynne Oudekerk – Secretary 
Jill Dugas Hughes – Library Director 
Mari Harris 
Elizabeth Giugno 
Shay Harrison 
Liz Reyner – Friends of the East Greenbush Library 
Holly Knnedy – Town of East Greenbush 
Tom Grant – Rensselaer County 
Eileen Riley – Recording Secretary 
 

Meeting called to order @ 7:30. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 
 
MINUTES:  The minutes of the January 21, 2020 Board meeting has been corrected to read under Town 
of East Greenbush “Natural Resources Project”.   
 
MOTION:  Mr. West made a motion to accept the minutes of the January 21, 2020 Board meeting as 
corrected.  2nd Mr. McCann.  All in favor.  None opposed.  The motion carried. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT:   
 
MOTION:  Ms. Harris made a motion to accept the Off Warrant dated February 12, 2020 in the amount 
of $104,090.66.   2nd Mr. McCann.  All in favor.  None opposed.  The motion carried.  
 
MOTION:  Mr. McCann made a motion to authorize the signing of the February 12, 2020 Warrant in the 
amount of $20,590.38.  2nd Ms. Giugno.  All in favor.  Noe opposed.  The motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  With 12% of the year completed, Mr. McCann made a motion to accept the P & L and Balance 
Sheet as presented.  2nd January was a busy month.  Visitors, checkouts, program attendance, and 
volunteer hours are just a few of the areas that increMs. Giugno.  All in favor.  None opposed.  The 
motion carried. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT:   
 January was a busy month.  Visitors, checkouts, number of programs & program attendance and 
volunteer hours are just a few of the areas that showed an increase. 
 The Film Festival was a success and a full report will be available for the March meeting. 
 The Children’s and Teen rooms have been updated. Several staff members have completed  23 
hour of professional development. 
 The Friends ongoing book sale realized $507.85. 
 



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE:   
 Friends support for the Library for the last 2 years has been $15,000.00. 
 $15,000.00 has been received from the Friends for 2020.  
 Stark & Basilla will no longer audit the Library therefore meetings have been set-up with 3 firms 
for audit that are familiar with this type of organization. 
 The 2020budget schedule is set:  3 planning meetings, 1 presentation to the Board and 1 public 
hearing. 
 
MOTION:  The Administration Committee made a motion to change the date of the vote on the budget 
to 9/17/20 with the goal of increasing community participation to September 17, 2020.  2nd Mr. McCann.  
All in favor.  The motion carried. 
 
SERVICE COMMITTEE:  No meeting. 
 
FRIENDS:   
 Vice President and Book Sale chairperson still needed 
 $15.000.00 grant approved for the Library 
 $72.00 in DVD sales @ the film fest 
 $600.00 @ the sale in the Library in January 
 membership renewal letter is at the printers 
 a stop will be placed on book donations on 3/1/20 
 work will continue with Better World Books. 
 
TOWN OF EAST GREENBUSH: 
 The following have been hired:  police officers, assistant town planner, an additional building 
inspector’ a Tow services coordinator and assistant, a new Town judge has been appointed. 
 
RENSSELAER COUNTY:   
 The County is in a strong financial position due to the sales tax 
 40 miles or more of road construction is planned for this year 
 A new technically equipped fire tower is being built that will provide additional revenue form 
other towns using the facility for trainings. 
 
UHLS:   
 The distribution of future funds is still being determined and Mr. Poost will participate in the in 
the discussions 
 Educational programs for trustee training are being developed.  
 
PERSONNEL:   
 
MOTION:  Mr. McCann made a motion to accept the Personnel memo as presented.  2nd Ms. Oudekerk.  
All in favor.  None opposed. The motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:   
 Succession Planning - the administration Committee is continuing to process a plan for seamless 
transitioning with Board changes. 



 Strategic Planning – the last 4 years of the 5 year plan are being reviewed and the committee 
will touch on areas that need attention.  A new direction may be needed.  The process will be completed 
by October or November. 
M. McCann left at 9:00. 
 
   The Board agreed to begin the process by hiring a facilitator at $1500.00 for preplanning and to set the 
scope of the Plan. 
 
Ms.Harris made a motion to adjourn at 9:50  2nd Ms. Oudekerk. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
       Eileen Riley, Recording Secretary 
 
 
   
   
 
  
 
  
 



TO: EGCL Board of Trustees

FROM: Robert West, Treasurer

RE:               Off Warrant Expenses

DATE:           March 12- April 17, 2020

Date Amount Vendor/Notes:

Payroll:

03.20.20 102.96$                      Paychex

41,466.40$                 Payroll and Employee Benefits

3,069.33$                   Employer Tax Contribution

04.03.20 97.55$                        Paychex

40,852.21$                 Payroll and Employee Benefits

3,022.33$                   Employer Tax Contribution

04.17.20 103.96$                      Paychex (includes quarterly reports)

38,416.40$                 Payroll and Employee Benefits

2,835.98$                   Employer Tax Contribution

03.17.20 3,331.68$                   BlueShield

03.17.20 6,725.98$                   CDPHP

03.17.20 1,159.78$                   MVP

03.23.20 1,644.38$                   Nationalgrid

03.23.20 945.36$                      NYS Deferred Comp.

03.23.20 524.00$                      Time Warner (Fiber Optic)

03.23.20 263.87$                      Time Warner

03.31.20 945.36$                      NYS Deferred Comp.

03.31.20 144.00$                      Pitney Bowes

Sub total 145,651.53$               

03.27.20 280,000.00$               Bond Principal payment

03.27.20 7,000.00$                   Bond Interest payment

TOTAL 432,651.53$               



East Greenbush Community Library

Off-Warrant 2020 April 16, 2020

For Trustee Review and Approval
Date Num Name Memo Account Amount

Aflac

03/28/2020 423638 Aflac Acct.# NBY22 MAR 2020 Aflac Post-tax 123.60

03/28/2020 423638 Aflac Acct.# NBY22 MAR 2020 Aflac Pre-tax 274.46

Total Aflac 398.06

AMAZON.COM CREDIT SERVICES

03/16/2020 AMAZON.COM CREDIT SERVICESADAPTOR, CABLE, NETWORK ATTACHED STORAGE & HARD DRIVES, 4 YR. WARRANTYIT Hard/Software 1,005.41

03/16/2020 AMAZON.COM CREDIT SERVICESAcct# 60457 8781 037018 5 Library/Office Supplies 61.99

03/16/2020 AMAZON.COM CREDIT SERVICESAcct# 60457 8781 037018 5 Phys Plant Repair/Maint/Equip 17.21

03/16/2020 AMAZON.COM CREDIT SERVICESAcct# 60457 8781 037018 5 Maintenance Supplies 9.89

03/16/2020 ProgSupp - Teens  $700 JZ Acct# 60457 8781 037018 5 Programming & Planning 5.95

03/16/2020 A5-Adult Music CDs $1,200 LK Acct# 60457 8781 037018 5 AV Materials 34.56

03/16/2020 B2 -Adlt. Non-Fic/Local Hist $10,600 EPAcct# 60457 8781 037018 5 Books 23.99

03/16/2020 B5-JFic,readers,stepup  $10,000 JDAcct# 60457 8781 037018 5 Books 30.77

03/16/2020 B7-Teen Fic,read list.repl $4,600 JZAcct# 60457 8781 037018 5 Books 8.79

03/16/2020 L1-LIBRARY OF THINGS $500 CSAcct# 60457 8781 037018 5 AV Materials 135.97

Total AMAZON.COM CREDIT SERVICES 1,334.53

BAKER & TAYLOR (ALL ACCTS)

03/12/2020 5016079245B5-JFic,readers,stepup  $10,000 JDHATTIE IN THE SPOTLIGHT Books 375.56

03/12/2020 5016079245Shipping & Processing $2000 HATTIE IN THE SPOTLIGHT Shipping and processing 21.48

03/12/2020 5016079067B2 -Adlt. Non-Fic/Local Hist $10,600 EPBECOMING SUPERNATURAL Books 204.95

03/12/2020 5016079067Shipping & Processing $2000 BECOMING SUPERNATURAL Shipping and processing 16.26

Total BAKER & TAYLOR (ALL ACCTS) 618.25

BOA CARD SERVICES (JILL)

04/06/2020 BOA CARD SERVICES (JILL) ONSTRATEGY Printing/Marketing 100.00

04/06/2020 BOA CARD SERVICES (JILL) HOOTSUITE,SOCIAL INTENTS,FEEDWINDIT Hard/Software 507.59

04/06/2020 BOA CARD SERVICES (JILL) CHROMEBOOKS/HEATSETS SENT TO EMPLOYEES TO WORK FROM HOMEIT Hard/Software 2,316.26

04/06/2020 BOA CARD SERVICES (JILL) WEB INSTINCT - TROUBLESHOOTING FOR NEW WEB HOSTIT Maint/Service 360.00

04/06/2020 ProgSupp - Teens  $700 JZ WALMART Programming & Planning 47.76

04/06/2020 BOA CARD SERVICES (JILL) GRASSHOPPER (REMOTE PHONE SERVICE TO TALK TO PATRONS FROM STAFF HOME)Telecommunications 335.59

Total BOA CARD SERVICES (JILL) 3,667.20

Brodart

03/09/2020 B5884281 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS THIS TOWN SLEEPS Books 14.90

03/09/2020 B5884281 Shipping & Processing $2000 THIS TOWN SLEEPS Shipping and processing 0.68

03/09/2020 B5884282 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS A REASONABLE DOUBT Books 16.04

03/09/2020 B5884282 Shipping & Processing $2000 A REASONABLE DOUBT Shipping and processing 0.68

03/10/2020 B5885213 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS RED LOTUS Books 32.06

03/10/2020 B5885213 Shipping & Processing $2000 RED LOTUS Shipping and processing 1.36

03/10/2020 B5885214 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS MURDEROUS RELATION Books 14.90

03/10/2020 B5885214 Shipping & Processing $2000 MURDEROUS RELATION Shipping and processing 0.68

03/10/2020 B5885215 B2 -Adlt. Non-Fic/Local Hist $10,600 EPWHY WE CAN'T SLEEP Books 14.90

03/10/2020 B5885215 Shipping & Processing $2000 WHY WE CAN'T SLEEP Shipping and processing 0.68

03/12/2020 B5887124 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS BOY FROM THE WOODS Books 48.13

03/12/2020 B5887124 Shipping & Processing $2000 BOY FROM THE WOODS Shipping and processing 2.04

03/12/2020 B5887125 B2 -Adlt. Non-Fic/Local Hist $10,600 EPFIX IT WITH FOOD Books 17.19

03/12/2020 B5887125 Shipping & Processing $2000 FIX IT WITH FOOD Shipping and processing 0.68

03/13/2020 B5888131 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS DARLING ROSE GOLD Books 14.90

03/13/2020 B5888131 Shipping & Processing $2000 DARLING ROSE GOLD Shipping and processing 0.68

03/13/2020 B5888132 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS GOOD NEIGHBORHOOD Books 16.04

03/13/2020 B5888132 Shipping & Processing $2000 GOOD NEIGHBORHOOD Shipping and processing 0.68

03/13/2020 B5888366 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS K TEAM Books 32.65

03/13/2020 B5888366 Shipping & Processing $2000 K TEAM Shipping and processing 1.36

03/13/2020 B5888367 B2 -Adlt. Non-Fic/Local Hist $10,600 EPAGE OF ENTITLEMENT Books 74.77

03/13/2020 B5888367 Shipping & Processing $2000 AGE OF ENTITLEMENT Shipping and processing 5.15

03/18/2020 B5891071 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS BACHELOR Books 29.70

03/18/2020 B5891071 Shipping & Processing $2000 BACHELOR Shipping and processing 9.33

 Payment Approved       /      /  Page 1 of 3



Date Num Name Memo Account Amount

03/18/2020 B5891072 B4 -Adult Fic, pbks  $14,500 CS LONGING FOR YESTERDAY Books 5.57

03/18/2020 B5891072 Shipping & Processing $2000 LONGING FOR YESTERDAY Shipping and processing 2.43

03/18/2020 B5891078 B7-Teen Fic,read list.repl $4,600 JZBE NOT FAR FROM ME Books 109.47

03/18/2020 B5891078 Shipping & Processing $2000 BE NOT FAR FROM ME Shipping and processing 9.10

03/18/2020 B5891079 B9 -J Popular $2,500  MC FIRE TRUCK VS DRAGON Books 75.39

03/18/2020 B5891079 Shipping & Processing $2000 FIRE TRUCK VS DRAGON Shipping and processing 6.30

03/18/2020 B5891080 B3-E picture/board bk $10,000 JABUGSY SAVES THE DAY Books 47.41

03/18/2020 B5891080 Shipping & Processing $2000 BUGSY SAVES THE DAY Shipping and processing 4.20

Total Brodart 610.05

Capital Security

03/16/2020 181217 Capital Security APRIL Contract Maintenance 47.00

Total Capital Security 47.00

Crystal Rock

03/31/2020 Crystal Rock 1 WATER DELIVERY Library/Office Supplies 74.19

Total Crystal Rock 74.19

EBSCO (CHECK FOR CREDIT)

04/12/2020 WSR522217M1-Databases $2,500 EP NOVELIST/LIBRARYAWARE SUBSCRIPTIONSDatabases 2,145.00

Total EBSCO (CHECK FOR CREDIT) 2,145.00

EGCL - Petty Cash

03/12/2020 4933 EGCL - Petty Cash V. BUCCIANTINI - BLEACH Maintenance Supplies 3.49

Total EGCL - Petty Cash 3.49

FARONICS

04/06/2020 INUS0198603FARONICS SOFTWARE FOR PUBLIC COMPUTER PROJECT 5/31/20-5/30/21IT Hard/Software 1,185.00

Total FARONICS 1,185.00

Gale/CENGAGE Learning

03/09/2020 70103372 BL4--Large Print $2,400 CS AMERICAN DIRT Books 26.59

03/10/2020 70109613 BL4--Large Print $2,400 CS NUMBERS GAME Books 45.00

03/25/2020 70166729 BL4--Large Print $2,400 CS RED LOTUS Books 22.50

Total Gale/CENGAGE Learning 94.09

HOME DEPOT

03/13/2020 HOME DEPOT PAINT, PAINT SUPPLIES, GLOVESMaintenance Supplies 111.06

03/13/2020 HOME DEPOT SPRAY BOTTLES, MATERIALS TO SECURE BOOKSHELVES IN YSPhys Plant Repair/Maint/Equip 14.45

Total HOME DEPOT 125.51

MicroMarketing LLC

03/10/2020 806133 A4-Audbks,CD&playaway $4000 SDLONG CALL AV Materials 39.09

03/10/2020 806363 A4-Audbks,CD&playaway $4000 SDCROOKED RIVER AV Materials 93.49

03/12/2020 806680 A4-Audbks,CD&playaway $4000 SDBIG LIES IN A SMALL TOWN AV Materials 55.23

03/17/2020 807243 A4-Audbks,CD&playaway $4000 SDLAST DAY AV Materials 34.99

Total MicroMarketing LLC 222.80

Midwest Tape

03/10/2020 98726079 A8 - J Music CDs $400 DISNEY DREAMIN' WITH MATTHEW MORRISONAV Materials 12.99

03/10/2020 98726079 A7-Adlt Video/DVD $12,500 BH DISNEY DREAMIN' WITH MATTHEW MORRISONAV Materials 363.56

Total Midwest Tape 376.55

MOBILE BEACON

04/08/2020 MOBILE BEACON ADDITIONAL MOBILE HOT SPOTSTelecommunications 1,200.00

Total MOBILE BEACON 1,200.00

NATIONAL BUSINESS EQUIP.  (CHICAGO)

04/06/2020 35261545 NATIONAL BUSINESS EQUIP.  (CHICAGO)MAY 1ST PMT Equipment 108.00

Total NATIONAL BUSINESS EQUIP.  (CHICAGO) 108.00

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING (PA)

03/18/2020 67330940 NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING (PA)MAY 1ST PAYMENT Equipment 269.12

Total NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING (PA) 269.12

NATIONAL BUSINESS TECH. (ALBANY)

03/19/2020 IN362468 NATIONAL BUSINESS TECH. (ALBANY)CONTRACT OVERAGE CHARGE 02.19-03.18.20Equipment 12.61

03/25/2020 IN363161 NATIONAL BUSINESS TECH. (ALBANY)CONTRACT OVERAGE CHARGE 02.25-03.24Equipment 24.79

03/25/2020 IN363161 NATIONAL BUSINESS TECH. (ALBANY)CONTRACT BASE CHARGE 03.25-04.24.20Equipment 114.00

Total NATIONAL BUSINESS TECH. (ALBANY) 151.40

 Payment Approved       /      /  Page 2 of 3



Date Num Name Memo Account Amount

New York State Deferred Comp.

04/14/2020 900989 New York State Deferred Comp. Plan #0045420 P/R DATED 04.17.20NYS Deferred Comp 457B 945.36

Total New York State Deferred Comp. 945.36

Nielsen Associates

02/26/2020 948133 Nielsen Associates BALANCE SPRING NEWSLETTERPrinting/Marketing 500.68

03/23/2020 Nielsen Associates DEPOSIT ON SUMMER 2020 NEWSLETTERPrinting/Marketing 950.00

Total Nielsen Associates 1,450.68

OVERDRIVE

01/28/2020 01080DA20017588M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS HUNTING FOR A HIGHLANDERDownloadable Materials 7.99

03/12/2020 01080CO20051350M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS LOVE IS BLIND Downloadable Materials 718.95

03/12/2020 01080CO20051356M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS ECOLOGY OF A CRACKER CHILDHOOKDownloadable Materials 513.41

03/17/2020 01080DA20056860M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS CONSPIRACY OF BONES Downloadable Materials 192.99

03/19/2020 01080CO20060779M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS IN THE HALL OF THE DRAGON KINGDownloadable Materials 419.53

03/19/2020 01080CO20060759M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS ONE GOOD TURN Downloadable Materials 1,439.44

03/24/2020 01080DA20068473M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS GLASS HOTEL Downloadable Materials 169.97

03/24/2020 01080DA20068472M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS GLASS HOTEL Downloadable Materials 85.50

04/02/2020 01080CO20083949M3J - J e-books/e-audio $1,500 MCPANCAKES FOR BREAKFAST Downloadable Materials 143.85

04/02/2020 01080CO20083760M3T-TEEN e-books/E-audio $2000 JZCARRY ON Downloadable Materials 654.33

04/06/2020 01080CO20087932M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS WOMEN WHO RUN WITH THE WOLVESDownloadable Materials 404.05

04/06/2020 01080CO20087869M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS ARCHERS TALE Downloadable Materials 820.68

04/07/2020 01080DA20090601M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS BOOK OF LOST FRIENDS Downloadable Materials 55.00

04/14/2020 01080DA20100040M3 -Overdrive $26,000 CS SUNRISE ON HALF MOON BAYDownloadable Materials 71.99

Total OVERDRIVE 5,697.68

Seasons East Lawn Care

03/04/2020 11218 Seasons East Lawn Care FEB 1/3 COST PLOWING & SALTING COMMUNITY WAYContract Maintenance 885.33

03/04/2020 11217 Seasons East Lawn Care FEB PLOWING & SALTING PARKING LOTContract Maintenance 1,040.00

04/05/2020 11238 Seasons East Lawn Care  MAR PLOWING & SALTING COMMUNITY WAYContract Maintenance 200.00

Total Seasons East Lawn Care 2,125.33

STAPLES

04/05/2020 8058086230STAPLES VINYL GLOVES, HAND SANITIZER, WRIST PADLibrary/Office Supplies 56.56

04/05/2020 8058086230STAPLES PAPER TOWELS, DISINFECTANT CLEANERMaintenance Supplies 135.17

Total STAPLES 191.73

UHLS

04/07/2020 20-217 UHLS 2ND QTR 2020 UHLAN FEES Professional Services 7,484.76

Total UHLS 7,484.76

Utica National Insurance Group

04/10/2020 Utica National Insurance Group BALANCE DUE AFTER AUDIT Workers Compensation 897.00

Total Utica National Insurance Group 897.00

Waste Management

03/25/2020 Waste Management APR Contract Maintenance 168.45

Total Waste Management 168.45

YMCA

04/08/2020 YMCA 1/3 COST OF LIGHTING COMMUNITY WAYUtilities 72.89

Total YMCA 72.89

TOTAL 31,664.12

 Payment Approved       /      /  Page 3 of 3



East Greenbush Community Library

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 2020
Voter Approved Budget on September 5, 2019

Jan - Dec 20 Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Fines & Fees

Printing/Fax/Fees 2,353.64 12,000.00

Out of County 244.30 2,000.00

General Fines 7,482.16 34,000.00

Lost or Damaged 1,192.52 5,500.00

Total Fines & Fees 11,272.62 53,500.00

LLSA 0.00 4,800.00

Other Income

Friends Grants Income 15,000.00 15,000.00

Interest 1,919.02 7,000.00

Reserve 0.00 23,481.00

Total Other Income 16,919.02 45,481.00

Public Funds

East Greenbush 1,721,454.00 1,721,454.00

Schodack 311,313.00 311,313.00

Total Public Funds 2,032,767.00 2,032,767.00

Total Income 2,060,958.64 2,136,548.00

Gross Profit 2,060,958.64 2,136,548.00

Expense

Annual Bond Expense 287,000.00 287,000.00

Operating Expenses

Technology/Communications

Equipment 2,756.68 9,500.00

IT Hard/Software 6,133.80 16,000.00

IT Maint/Service 620.00 9,000.00

Telecommunications 3,899.20 8,800.00

Total Technology/Communications 13,409.68 43,300.00

Programming & Planning 2,217.02 11,000.00

Bks & Mat'ls

AV Materials 5,464.70 27,575.00

Books 11,609.59 63,500.00

Downloadable Materials 15,522.34 29,500.00

Databases 2,145.00 2,500.00

Periodicals 0.00 5,000.00

Shipping and processing 556.68 2,000.00

Lost and Paid 198.88 1,000.00

Total Bks & Mat'ls 35,497.19 131,075.00

Facilities Expenses

Contract Maintenance 10,882.07 50,000.00

 On this date, the year is 29% over.  Page 1 of 4



Jan - Dec 20 Budget

Insurance 0.00 26,000.00

Phys Plant Repair/Maint/Equip 705.08 28,000.00

Maintenance Supplies 1,727.88 6,000.00

Utilities 5,729.46 35,000.00

Water/Sewer/Tax 1,702.97 2,900.00

Total Facilities Expenses 20,747.46 147,900.00

Professional Services 16,291.69 50,000.00

Operat'ns

Election 0.00 1,200.00

Printing/Marketing 4,437.44 16,500.00

Postage/Travel 623.85 4,000.00

Library/Office Supplies 1,919.08 12,000.00

Total Operat'ns 6,980.37 33,700.00

Personnel

Aflac Post-tax -123.60

Aflac Pre-tax -274.46

Disability 1,978.20 3,000.00

Health Insurance 38,415.20 125,700.00

NYS Deferred Comp 457B 0.00

NYSLRS

NYSLRS Employer Contribution 135,056.00 124,377.00

NYSLRS 414H Employee Cont. -1,065.14

NYSLRS 414H Loan Repayment -727.04

NYSLRS 414H Arrears 0.00

Total NYSLRS 133,263.82 124,377.00

Salaries

PT Hourly 51,316.70 173,953.00

Substitutes 4,355.51 26,316.00

Salaries FT 264,098.51 879,616.00

Total Salaries 319,770.72 1,079,885.00

Social Security & Medicare 23,639.58 82,611.00

Human Resources/Staff Dev./Trav 285.00 5,000.00

Workers Compensation 13,263.00 12,000.00

Total Personnel 530,217.46 1,432,573.00

Total Operating Expenses 625,360.87 1,849,548.00

Total Expense 912,360.87 2,136,548.00

Net Ordinary Income 1,148,597.77 0.00

Net Income 1,148,597.77 0.00

 On this date, the year is 29% over.  Page 2 of 4



East Greenbush Community Library

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 2020
Voter Approved Budget on September 5, 2019

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Fines & Fees

Printing/Fax/Fees

Out of County

General Fines

Lost or Damaged

Total Fines & Fees

LLSA

Other Income

Friends Grants Income

Interest

Reserve

Total Other Income

Public Funds

East Greenbush

Schodack

Total Public Funds

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

Annual Bond Expense

Operating Expenses

Technology/Communications

Equipment

IT Hard/Software

IT Maint/Service

Telecommunications

Total Technology/Communications

Programming & Planning

Bks & Mat'ls

AV Materials

Books

Downloadable Materials

Databases

Periodicals

Shipping and processing

Lost and Paid

Total Bks & Mat'ls

Facilities Expenses

Contract Maintenance

04/17/2020

% of Budget

19.61%

12.22%

22.01%

21.68%

21.07%

0.0%

100.0%

27.42%

0.0%

37.2%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

96.46%

96.46%

100.0%

29.02%

38.34%

6.89%

44.31%

30.97%

20.16%

19.82%

18.28%

52.62%

85.8%

0.0%

27.83%

19.89%

27.08%

21.76%

 On this date, the year is 29% over.  Page 3 of 4



Ordinary Income/ExpenseInsurance

Phys Plant Repair/Maint/Equip

Maintenance Supplies

Utilities

Water/Sewer/Tax

Total Facilities Expenses

Professional Services

Operat'ns

Election

Printing/Marketing

Postage/Travel

Library/Office Supplies

Total Operat'ns

Personnel

Aflac Post-tax

Aflac Pre-tax

Disability

Health Insurance

NYS Deferred Comp 457B

NYSLRS

NYSLRS Employer Contribution

NYSLRS 414H Employee Cont.

NYSLRS 414H Loan Repayment

NYSLRS 414H Arrears

Total NYSLRS

Salaries

PT Hourly

Substitutes

Salaries FT

Total Salaries

Social Security & Medicare

Human Resources/Staff Dev./Trav

Workers Compensation

Total Personnel

Total Operating Expenses

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

% of Budget

0.0%

2.52%

28.8%

16.37%

58.72%

14.03%

32.58%

0.0%

26.89%

15.6%

15.99%

20.71%

65.94%

30.56%

108.59%

107.15%

29.5%

16.55%

30.02%

29.61%

28.62%

5.7%

110.53%

37.01%

33.81%

42.7%

100.0%

100.0%

 On this date, the year is 29% over.  Page 4 of 4



East Greenbush Community Library

Balance Sheet April 16, 2020

As of December 31, 2020

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Gift & Grant Cash

Pioneer GIFT & GRANT XXXX0186 66,362.31

Petty Cash G&G 200.00

Total Gift & Grant Cash 66,562.31

Cash

Pioneer OPERATING XXXX0178 162,313.15

Pioneer PUBLIC FINANCE XXXX0194 1,429,733.06

Pioneer FUND BALANCE XXX251 26,659.89

Petty Cash 200.00

Total Cash 1,618,906.10

Reserve

Pioneer HURR ACCOUNT XXX244 98,372.31

Pioneer CAPITAL RESERVEXXXX0228 256,082.20

Pioneer OPER. CONT. RESXXXX0210 95,707.09

Total Reserve 450,161.60

Total Checking/Savings 2,135,630.01

Other Current Assets

Register Cash 250.00

Total Other Current Assets 250.00

Total Current Assets 2,135,880.01

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets

Building 3,953,382.09

Equipment 172,214.73

Furniture 557,074.52

Land Improvments 647,875.60

Software and Licenses 26,183.06

Total Fixed Assets 5,356,730.00

Fixed Assets - A/D

A/D - Building (1,650,135.49)

A/D - Equipment (130,437.02)

A/D - Furniture (536,803.14)

A/D - Land Improvements (582,717.93)

A/D - Software and Licenses (22,501.35)

Total Fixed Assets - A/D (2,922,594.93)

Land 248,028.78

Total Fixed Assets 2,682,163.85

TOTAL ASSETS 4,818,043.86

 Page 1 of 2



LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

Land Bond S/T 265,000.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 265,000.00

Total Current Liabilities 265,000.00

Long Term Liabilities

Bond Liability 280,000.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 280,000.00

Total Liabilities 545,000.00

Equity

Retained Earnings 3,092,446.35

Net Income 1,180,597.51

Total Equity 4,273,043.86

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,818,043.86

 Page 2 of 2



 
 

Page | 1 
 

Director’s Report – March 2020 

Submitted April 21, 2020 by Jill Dugas Hughes 
 

As I reflect on how much has changed since the beginning of March before the COVID-19 pandemic came to our 

community, I am humbled. In just over a month, the roadmap for 2020 took an unexpected turn. Very few 

things previously planned remain, and we have re-envisioned how we provide library services at record speed. 

We remained true to our mission: to serve as a community center for lifelong learning, with access to a broad 

range of ideas and information through traditional and emerging resources to meet the intellectual, recreational 

and cultural needs of East Greenbush residents.  

• March 1, the Governor announce the first confirmed case of the virus in New York State. 

• March 2, new cleaning protocols for schools and public transportation were announced.  

• March 3, the outlook still seemed to be well within management, there was another positive case 
announced and the Governor signed a $40 million emergency management authorization.  

• March 4, SUNY announced the cancellation of study abroad programs in high risk countries.  

• By March 5, there were 22 confirmed cases, however none were in the Capital District.  

• March 6, the Department of Health announced new testing guidance, as well as quarantine and isolation 
guidance.  

• On March 7, NYS cases increased to 89; 2 of which were in Saratoga County, and the Governor 
announced a State of Emergency.  

• March 8, the Governor encouraged working from home and avoiding densely populated spaces 
whenever possible. This is the date where we began responding to the emerging pandemic in earnest.  
We increased cleaning of high touch points at the library, instructed staff on new protocols 
recommended by CDC, moved furniture to increase social distancing, and began creating a list of 
technology infrastructure needs to prepare for working remotely. We implemented previously 
unthought of protocols at service desks such as asking patrons to hold their own library cards for 
scanning, encouraging the use of drive-thru window services, and only serving pre-packaged food. We 
posted flyers at service desks and restrooms with proper handwashing protocols.  

• On March 9, 142 cases in New York were announced. 

• On March 10, food-related programming at the library was cancelled.  

• March 11, Governor Cuomo announced a new cooperative effort with New York business leaders to 
voluntarily implement telecommuting protocols. Staff were reminded of the emergency closing 
procedures which would be immediately put into place upon notification of a patron or staff member 
testing positive. Additional signage was created to request that patrons clean the computers after use 
and to encourage patrons to use the drive-thru window services. Additionally, we implemented 
additional procedures for notification of any onset illness for staff.  



 
 

Page | 2 
 

• March 12, the state announced limits on mass gatherings; events with 500+ were cancelled/postponed. 
Events with less than 500 attendees were directed to cut capacity to 50 percent.  

• March 13, 325 total cases were confirmed in New York State, and we saw the first case in Albany 
County. As a result, we suspended all library programs- for all age groups- as well as the use of our 
meeting spaces by outside groups, and all donations. At this time, the library still remained open, 
however, we asked library visitors to stay home if they are sick, use hand sanitizer upon entering, and to 
begin using the library for core information services, and not as a community gathering space. We 
removed many computers from service (4 in adult and 1 in youth services remained). Laptop use was 
encouraged, and the guest pass restriction for laptops was removed for the duration of public reduced 
computer availability. Inter-library loan (outside of UHLS) was suspended. The Continuity of Services 
Plan was distributed to the Board. All library fines have been suspended until further notice. Staff were 
instructed on how to access their work computer remotely. 

• March 14, the library was closed to the public; except for drive-thru window services. Hours: Saturday, 
10-5, Sunday 1-5.  

• March 15, 729 cases confirmed in New York State.  

• March 16, transitioned to M-F only drive-thru window services. 10-6. The Governor announced that 
crowd capacity for recreational and social gatherings is limited to 50. At 8pm, restaurants and bars 
transitioned to take-out only services. Movie theaters, gyms, and casinos closed. East Greenbush 
Schools closed for the day so that staff can meet and prepare for distance learning. Effective at 6pm, 
library officially closed to the public. Book-drop and drive-thru window service suspended. The library 
building is closed to all except for 1-3 staff daily (essential work only). Staff were directed to work on 
projects from home. Essential staff have been set up for telework. Staff will continue to be paid for their 
regularly scheduled hours. Staff will work together to brainstorm ways to build community (amongst 
each other and with the greater community) digitally. The library will prioritize digital lending and 
allocate more financial resources. The building will continue to be monitored. I will remain in regular 
contact with staff, library board, UHLS directors, and town leaders. The financial business of the library 
will continue and all finances will be paid via “off-warrant.” The March board meeting is cancelled.   

• March 17, began getting information out to the community on how to apply for library cards online, so 
they can access all the online resources. UHLS has made all online temporary cards 90 days instead of 
10. Delivery service has been halted. Expired library cards will be renewed automatically. Staff were 
notified that we would use Microsoft Teams (part of the Microsoft Suite that we already had access to, 
but never used) as our primary communication tool. Training videos and quick start guides were 
distributed along with notification that more information would be coming on how this tool would be 
implemented. Department Heads worked with individual staff to communicate work from home 
initiatives. The Governor announced comprehensive paid sick leave for quarantined workers.  

• March 18, the Governor announced the temporary closure of all indoor portions of retail shopping 
malls, amusement parks, and bowling alleys, effective 8pm. 

• March 20, the Governor announced the temporary closure of barber shops, nail and hair salons, and 
related personal care services. He also announced that effective 8pm on Sunday, 100% closure of non-



 
 

Page | 3 
 

essential businesses (exceptions made for essential services such as groceries and healthcare). 
Statewide total cases 7,102.  

• March 23, Statewide total cases increased to 20,875 

• March 29, Governor announced that the shut-down will continue for another two weeks, through April 
15. Statewide total cases increased to 59,513 

• April 6, Shutdown for schools and non-essential businesses will continue for another two weeks, 
through April 29. Total confirmed cases statewide increased to 130,689. 

• April 12, Governor announced executive order requiring employers to provide masks for employees who 
work with the public. The library ordered masks.  

• April 15, Governor announced requirement for all people in New York to wear masks in public. Total 
confirmed cases 213,779.  

• April 16, Governor announced “Pause” extended until May 15. Total confirmed cases statewide 
increased to 222,284. 

I am incredibly proud of the work of the East Greenbush Community Library staff over the past month. In 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we have instituted the following initiatives: 

• Extended online renewal policies 

• Expanded online checkout services 

• Added virtual programming, many of which will likely continue once we reopen. We have been 
heartened by the community response! 

• Added phone, email, and chat reference/help desk services  

• Added access to digital services for library cards registered online 

• Began online library card registration campaign 

• Providing a list of non-COVID-19 online resources (activities to do at home etc.) 

• Fine forgiveness 

• Wifi services in the library parking lot 24/7 

• Creating and publicizing virtual staff recommendations for books 

• Supplying books for YMCA childcare program at Goff MS for children of essential workers 

• Updated library website to make most relevant information readily accessible 

• Expanded social media footprint to provide timely information and to build community virtually  

• Promoting Census virtually 

• Making personal outreach calls to patrons 

• All staff were given the option to work from home and be paid. 100% of full-time staff and the majority 
of part-time staff have chosen to work from home. Staff are collaborating daily through the Teams 
software and learning new skills at a record pace. 

• We are working on a safety plan and re-opening plan. I am serving on the UHLS committee to 
recommend best practices for reopening for UHLS libraries.  

• Hoopla services are now available for all UHLS patrons.  

• Weekly eNewsletter  



 
 

Page | 4 
 

Thank you for your continued support. I encourage you to read the department reports to see more detailed 
information for March activities. Now that we have our “new reality and infrastructure” up and running, I have 
been encouraging staff to slow down and try to pace themselves. It is critical that we make time to take care of 
our own mental health during this pandemic, so that we can continue to provide exemplary services to the 
community. We are working on a health and wellness initiative for staff. I have tremendous respect for our team 
of public servants. Not once have we faltered; but rather, we have come together, evolved, and implemented 
innovative services for our community. I am humbled and incredibly proud of our team. 

 

Reference Department Report – March 2020 

Submitted by Elizabeth Putnam 
 

Highlights 
• We were able to offer 16 program sessions between 3/1 and 3/12. Twenty-seven programs that were 

scheduled to occur between 3/12-3/31 had to be cancelled, including two sessions of TaxAide, the 
monthly free movie, and the Murderous March Confab. 

• Adult Services staff are working on the following projects from home: 
o Contributing to the library’s weekly e-newsletter and social media presence 

o Gathering themed groupings of virtual library content to share with patrons (ex. Books from 
Hoopla paired with an activity or exercise) 

o Creating a Monday night Facebook book chat event 
o Creating virtual book discussion group(s) 
o Training in Beanstack, the online product we plan to use for summer reading 

o Training in Microsoft Teams, LiveChat, Grasshopper phone service 

o Cancelling and rescheduling live programs; determining ways to transfer some of our 
programming to an online format 

o Creating a virtual reference service schedule and factsheets for virtual reference staff 
o  

 

Organizations we partnered with this March to deliver programming: 
 

• AARP TaxAide  

• AARP Driver Safety  

• Community Loan Fund of the Capital Region  

• Greenbush Garden Club  

• Questar III  

 

Professional Development 
 

Reference Service 
Data is in library building. Will report once we regain building access. 
 



 
 

Page | 5 
 

March 2020 Programs  

(10 programs, 16 sessions, 256 attendees, average attendance per session: 16) 
 

51 AARP TaxAide 3/2/2020 

6 ENL: English as a New Language 3/2/2020 

22 MVP Tai Chi Moves 3/3/2020 

0 Drop-In Tuesday Tech Time 3/3/2020 

14 Greenbush Garden Club - Five Rivers Environmental Education Center: A Capital Region Gem 3/3/2020 

5 ENL: English as a New Language 3/4/2020 

16 Grant Writing Workshop with Community Loan Fund, part 1 of 2 3/5/2020 

13 Open Recreation Space 3/6/2020 

48 AARP TaxAide 3/9/2020 

5 ENL: English as a New Language 3/9/2020 

31 AARP Smart Driver Course 3/9/2020 

20 MVP Tai Chi Moves 3/10/2020 

7 Drop-In Tuesday Tech Time 3/10/2020 

5 ENL: English as a New Language 3/11/2020 

3 Legal Project Free Legal Consultations 3/11/2020 

10 Understanding Alzheimer's and Dementia 3/12/2020 

  



 
 

Page | 6 
 

Resource Sharing & Access Report – March 2020 

Submitted by Dawn Geurds 
 

Highlights  
• Monday March 16 was the last day the library drive-thru was open to the public.  

• Tuesday March 17, the library was totally closed to the public.  

• Wednesday March 18, I went into the library and processed the books that had been delivered by mail 
or UPS.  

• Been working from home since Thursday March 19 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  

• Spring arrived on Thursday March 19 at 11:49 pm.  

• Monday March 23, we received 6.1 inches of snow.  

• For the most part weather wise, the month of March has been pretty nice.  
 

Statistics 
• Answered 5 reference questions by e-mail.  

• Requested 11 ILLS  

• Received 7 ILLS  

• Sent out 3 ILLS  

• 449 items requested within UHLS.  

• 2,715 items that were placed on the Hold Shelf.  

• 1,474 items were pulled from our shelves and sent to other libraries within the UHLS, to fill requests for 
their patrons.    

• 164 expired holds were not picked up by the patrons that requested them.     

• (NA at this time) items were found on the library’s shelves that were marked lost in transit.  

• (NA at this time) items were found on the shelves from the Unfilled But Available Item-Level Requests 
Report  

• Drive-thru patron assistance was needed 165 times.  

• Ongoing Booksale made (NA at this time) for the month.  

• Library was open 16 days / 140 hours.  
 

 

  



 
 

Page | 7 
 

Youth Services Report – March 2020 

Submitted by Molly Chatt 
 

Youth Services Department Highlights:  March started out like any other month, with our regular 

storytimes and programs, planning for yet another summer reading program.  Obviously, that has all changed, 

and the youth services staff is now working from home.  We were already working on providing an online 

Summer Reading Challenge this year through Beanstack, and Jen and Jenna have continued working on creating 

our program from home.   We have posted several virtual storytimes through Facebook, and are working on 

other virtual programming, including crafts, Lego challenges, and book groups.  I have listed some statistics from 

the one online storytime we had in March below.  I did not include the numbers in our spreadsheet, but I have 

maintained a record of them until we decide which statistics will be included in state reports.   

Tween/Teen Services:  There were 67 teens in the Teen Room during the 8 days the room was staffed in 

March. 

1000 Books Before Kindergarten:  1 new child registered for the 1000 Books Before Kindergarten 

program this March. 7 children checked in to record another 100 books, and 2 children graduated from the 

program and finished all 1000 books! 

 

Virtual Programs: Miss Molly presented two short virtual storytimes in March.  They were posted on 

Facebook, and currently live on the library’s YouTube channel.    

 

3/28 storytime:  720 people reached, 143 engagements, 101 views 

3/31 storytime: 779 people reached, 134 engagements, 67 views 

 

Children’s Programs 

Program Ages #Sessions Children Adults 
Movers & Shakers 0-3 6 99 81 

Preschool Storytime 3-5 4 73 40 

Saturday Storytime All 1 19 17 

Preschool Yoga w/ YMCA 2-5 1 23 13 

Saturday Spring Crafts 5+ 1 8 6 

Girl Scout Troop Visit (VISIT) 5-7 1 7 5 

Total Children’s Programs  14 229 162 

 
  
  

 



 
 

Page | 8 
 

Tween/Teen Programs 

Program #Sessions #Tweens/Teens 
Friday Mashup 1 8 

Anime Club 1 10 

Total Tween/Teen Programs 2 18 

 

Youth Services Provided 

Type of Service Quantity 
Reference questions – Children’s & Teen desks 344 

Computer Assistance 20 

Miscellaneous questions – program signups, board games, directional, meeting rooms 71 

Games Computer Sessions 205 

Volunteers 4 Volunteers 
6.25 Hours 

  



 
 

Page | 9 
 

Technical Services Report – March 2020 

Submitted by Susan Dague 

I will have to add my narrative later as my notes are on my blotter calendar at the library. 

 

Number of items processed:  186 (total – unknown) 
Audio (adult + YA + juvenile) 1 

Juvenile Fiction 99 

Juvenile Nonfiction 1 

Electronic (adult + YA + juvenile) 0 

Fiction (adult + YA) 41 

Miscellaneous 0 

Unknown (on order records) 191 

Nonfiction (adult + YA) 16 

Print Subscriptions (adult + YA + juvenile) 27 

Video (adult + juvenile) 1 

Total 377 

 

Number of items withdrawn:  587 

Added for the year to date: 1,550 
Withdrawn for the year to date: 2,917 
Total items: 92,790 

  



 
 

Page | 10 
 

Digital Services Report – March 2020 

Submitted by Karrie McLellan 
 
 
The first half of the month was very different from the second half of the month.  When library closure became 

imminent, current project were dropped in favor of emergency planning and communications.  I have split this 

report accordingly. 

While the library was open: 

Online Presence 
• Researching a site map issue that cropped up with our site and blogs after moving to eglibrary.org. 

• Hold redelivery went live on OverDrive.  This allows patrons more flexibility in managing holds. 

• Planned for implementation of the new meeting room policy 

UHLS 
• Troubleshooting Sierra facet display with Rob and Innovative.  This issue started after the last Sierra 

update. 

Library Computers/Hardware 
• Moved from backing up the server on tape (antiquated and failing tape drive) to using a network 

attached storage (NAS) device.  The NAS creates a second backup to a different cloud storage location 

than the cloud the server backs up to directly. Extra bank trips and daily tape changes will no longer be 

needed, saving staff time. 

• Deployed two Census-only computers for the public to use. 

 

While closing and during closure: 

Online Presence 
• Suspended the ability of patrons to request meeting rooms. 

• Added a central mailbox for the library and routed as much of our online communication to it as 

possible.  This will make sure questions get seen and answered in a timely fashion, no matter who is 

available to work. 

• Marked us temporarily closed on our website, Google, Bing, and similar sites 

• Worked with Susan and Elizabeth to redesign the front page of our website to highlight digital resources 

and closure FAQ.  Added COVID-19 resources to a previous post and linked from the front page. 

• Increased the number of monthly Hoopla circulations allowed for patrons. 

• Secured free use of Tech Talk newsletter and database (tech and communication tips) for staff and 

patrons. 

• Exploring chat reference platforms 



 
 

Page | 11 
 

• Created social media posts about digital services and Tech Tips posts to assist patrons in learning to use 

them. 

• Repurposing the old Staff Picks blog to aggregate staff reviews from Goodreads and link to the titles on 

our digital platforms. 

 

Library Computers/Hardware 
• Configured an on-site computer with QuickBooks for Jill to access remotely. 

• Jill and I worked with Key Communications to implement call forwarding in a manner that would allow 

staff to return reference calls while making it appear as if the calls came from the library.  This turned 

out to be a method lacking sustainability.  Looking into Grasshopper as an alternative. 

• DWService to remote into computers for staff. Had to troubleshoot various issues.  Some reported 

lagging connections, so I started uploading priority files to the cloud via Teams to minimize need for 

remote access. 

• Collected a list of staff inadequate home computers, headsets, and internet service for telecommuting.  

Jill ordered and distributed Chromebooks and headsets.  I uploaded a simple getting started guide and 

links to Chromebook help. 

• Tested Teams and GoToMeeting for video meetings.  GoToMeeting was far superior for a large group, 

though Teams may be enough for smaller, ad hoc meetings. 

• Collaborated with department heads to find the best ways to organize and use Teams. 

• Supported staff in new software use. 

• When it became clear we would not be in the library for a while, I turned off monitors, printers, and 

other non-essential equipment to save power. 

• Digital book club – Holly and Marion are exploring hosting a virtual book club.  Made platform 

recommendations and suggested the Hoopla digital book club. 

Statistical Notes: 
• Facebook and Twitter reach skyrocketed, but many other “digital branch” stats were level.   

• As expected, stats for in-person visits and any tech that requires physical presence were about half the 

expected amount. 

 

Back-Burnered Projects: 
• Everything not tied to the virtual library and communications. 

 

  



 
 

Page | 12 
 

Circulation Report – March 2020 

Submitted by Marion Pierson 
 

Highlights 
I attended the Circulation Advisory Council meeting on March 4th, and a Meeting Room Transition planning 

meeting on March 9th. Other circulation staff-hosted programs, Crafter eve and Cooking the Books cookbook 

club were cancelled. 

One statistic I would like to highlight. After the library was shut down to the public, on Saturday March 14th 

through Monday March 16th, 165 patrons picked up 650 items at the drive-through window. This was a 

wonderful effort by the circulation team and back office library staff to get materials into our patrons’ hands 

before the full shutdown. 

 

Statistics 
 

Patrons:  40 new patrons registered at the library from March 1st-13th. 
 
East Greenbush Residents  14   
Schodack Residents 10 
Other 
UHLS MyCard                                                          

13 
 3 

  
Checkouts:   
March 2020 13,512 (March 1st-13th.) 
March 2019 31,493 
  
Volunteers:  00 volunteers worked 00 hours (These numbers are not available.) 
Outreach  
Adult  
  
Notary Services: (This number is not available.) 

 



 
 

Page | 13 
 

Outside Groups – March 2020 

Submitted by Kathy Rossello 
 

51 Event Reservations - 18 Approved, 33 Cancelled due to COVID-19  
Total Expected Attendance - All Events: 1,117   

   

18 Events Held Date 
Expected 
Attendance 

East Bank Arts Alliance 03/02/2020 20 

Tuesday Ramblers 03/03/2020 25 

School Systems FCU 03/04/2020 8 

Trip to Europe 03/04/2020 60 

Flying Knights Model Aircraft Club 03/04/2020 20 

Tri-City Red Hat Ladies 03/05/2020 15 

American Needlepoint Guild 03/05/2020 15 

Kindergarten Lip Sync 03/05/2020 26 

Girl Scout Brownie Troop 1041 03/07/2020 15 

AUHV 03/08/2020 35 

Troop 1145 meeting 03/08/2020 12 

Genet lip sync 03/08/2020 10 

Mohawk Hudson Chapter of AMC 03/09/2020 12 

Girl Scout Brownie Troop 1041 03/09/2020 12 

Girl Scout Brownie Troop 1041 03/09/2020 12 

Tuesday Ramblers 03/10/2020 25 

Columbia Lacrosse Club 03/10/2020 30 

Girl Scout troop 5514 03/11/2020 11 

Total Expected Attendance  363 

   

33 Events Cancelled   

Girl Scout - Junior and Cadette - Think Like a Programmer 03/01/2020 15 

Brownie / Junior Girl Scouts - Think Like a Programmer 03/02/2020 20 

CDLUG (Capital District Linux Users Group) 03/07/2020 40 

CDPHP Fitness for Arthritis 03/12/2020 20 

Genet Kindergarten Lip Sync (Cancelled) 03/13/2020 25 

Capital Region RWA (cancelled) 03/14/2020 35 

CDLUG (Capital District Linux Users Group) (Cancelled) 03/14/2020 40 

Capital Hudson Iris Society (Cancelled) 03/15/2020 25 

Brownie / Junior Girl Scouts - Think Like a Programmer (Cancelled) 03/16/2020 20 

Tuesday Ramblers (Cancelled) 03/17/2020 25 

Girl Scout leader meeting (cancelled) 03/17/2020 15 

Girl Scouts Leader Meeting Su136 (CANCELLED) 03/17/2020 1 



 
 

Page | 14 
 

Kindergarten Lip Sync (Cancelled) 03/18/2020 25 

Early Ford V8 Club (Cancelled) 03/18/2020 30 

Fort Orange Garden Club (Cancelled) 03/19/2020 30 

Spiritual Protection for Paranormal Investigation (Cancelled) 03/19/2020 40 

Troop 1145 meeting (CANCELLED) 03/22/2020 12 

Genet lip sync  (CANCELLED) 03/22/2020 8 

Schodack Folk Sessions (learning session) Open to public (CANCELLED) 03/23/2020 20 

EGPW Board Meeting  (CANCELLED) 03/23/2020 20 

Brownie / Junior Girl Scouts - Think Like a Programmer (CANCELLED) 03/23/2020 20 

Tuesday Ramblers  (CANCELLED) 03/24/2020 25 

Travel Buddies  (CANCELLED) 03/24/2020 25 

EGA Studio Time - March 2020 mtg  (CANCELLED) 03/25/2020 15 

Girl Scout troop 5514  (CANCELLED) 03/25/2020 11 

CDJW - Capital District Jeep Wrangler  (CANCELLED) 03/25/2020 25 

Climate Crisis and the American Northeast  (CANCELLED) 03/25/2020 50 

Adoption Orientation Session  (CANCELLED) 03/26/2020 25 

Kindergarten Lip Sync  (CANCELLED) 03/26/2020 25 

Troop 1145 meeting  (CANCELLED) 03/29/2020 12 

Brownie / Junior Girl Scouts - Think Like a Programmer  (CANCELLED) 03/30/2020 20 

Tuesday Ramblers  (CANCELLED) 03/31/2020 25 

The Writer's Bloc  (CANCELLED) 03/31/2020 10 

Total Expected Attendance  754 
 



 
 

Memo: To East Greenbush Community Library Board of Trustees 

From: Jill Dugas Hughes, Director 

Date: March 12, 2020 (#1), Revised April 15, 2020 (#2) 

Re: COVID-19/Health Risk Scenarios- Continuation of Service Plan (Update #2) 

 

Continuation of Services Plan 

The purpose of this memo is to share our Continuation of Service Plan that will be put into place in the 

event the library needs to close or modify services due to COVID-19 or other unusual health situations to 

ensure the safety and overall well-being of community members and staff.  

The library director will be the chief spokesperson for the library, communicating internally with the 

staff and board, as well as the public. 

In times of normally elevated health risk (example: a typical flu season) 

• Library staff will be reminded of general health practices, using guidance from the Center for 

Disease Control (CDC).  

• Signage encouraging proper handwashing will be posted in the restroom, and various locations 

in the library. Hand sanitizer and tissues will be available to the public.  

• Staff will regularly disinfect commonly-used hard surfaces following protocols recommended by 

the CDC.  

In times of unusually elevated health risk (example: cases of a new or especially virulent disease are 

present in our general area (COVID-19)). 

• In addition to all of the above;  

• Director and Board of Trustees will continually monitor information from trusted health sources 

to determine which actions are most appropriate. 

• Staff may communicate inside and outside of library, messages encouraging patrons/staff to 

practice general health best practices and any other health practices recommended by the CDC 

that may help slow the spread of a particular disease. 

• Staff may communicate both inside and outside of the library, messages encouraging patrons 

not to use the library facility if they are experiencing symptoms of infectious disease 

• Staff will institute procedures to limit person-to-person contact with others (follow 6 feet 

guidelines by CDC). 

• Collections deemed as presenting an elevated risk of spreading disease may be temporarily 

removed from public spaces 

• Staff will evaluate programs for the possibility of spreading disease; programs may be altered to 

lessen the risk of spreading disease, or programs may be cancelled or rescheduled 



• Library may temporarily offer additional service options in order to meet the needs of those 

who might wish to avoid entering the library (ex. Encourage use of drive thru window services) 

• If practical and appropriate, protective gear (and training for the use, removal, and proper 

disposal of such gear) may be made available to staff members to prevent the spread of disease. 

• Library outreach services may be temporarily suspended. 

• Public use of the meeting rooms may be temporarily suspended. 

• Patrons will be made aware of any changes to the library’s modes of operation through as many 

channels as possible.  

• Staff schedules may be staggered to accommodate social distancing and tracing. Only scheduled 

staff will be allowed in the building. 

• Consider the temporary suspension of volunteer services. 

• Limited use of building. 

• Consider limited hours to accommodate staggered staff schedule.  

• Institute a single point of service for material returns.  

• Follow any CDC or DOH guidelines, including the use of PPE, cleaning protocols, etc. Institute 

staff training at the beginning of each shift to go over protocols and reminders.  

• Staff will be encouraged to telecommute where possible (particularly employees who are 

member of at-risk populations) 

• Consider restrictions on shared use of technology/devices (phones, keyboards, etc.) 

In times of a severe health risk (example: East Greenbush Central Schools are closed in response to the 

presence of a new or especially virulent disease in our community) 

• All of the above in addition to: 

• The library director and board of trustees will follow the guidance and actions of government 

entities (federal, state, county, town), local school districts, and UHLS in determining whether 

the library should be temporarily closed to the public due to health concerns.  

• The library will be closed to the public if we don’t have enough staff to open and operate due to 

callouts for sickness. This decision will be made by the director and implemented immediately. 

• If it is determined that the library will be closed to the public due to health concerns, all East 

Greenbush Community Library employees shall receive pay for the hours they had been 

originally scheduled to work for the duration of the closure.  

• Some maintenance staff will return to duty while practicing social distancing. 

• Some administrative duties requiring access to the building are allowed (business, director, IT) 

• Although many library services are out of reach if the library facility is closed, there are some 

resources the library may continue to provide: 

Services to the Public 

• Digital Materials (eBooks, eAudiobooks, eMagazines, eVideos, eMusic) can be borrowed online 

and downloaded/streamed to personal devices and computers via the library website and 

related mobile apps. 

• Databases can be accessed from the library website 

• Staff will provide live reference questions via phone (main library number- 518-477-7476) and 

email (circ@eglibrary.org) during the following schedule: 

mailto:circ@eglibrary.org


1pm-8pm Mondays & Wednesdays 

10-8pm Tuesdays & Thursdays 

All other calls and emails will be responded to on weekdays within 24 hours.  

• We will curate educational, entertainment, and literacy resources (videos, tutorials, book 

suggestions, etc.) for people to use at home and post them on our website. 

• We will increase our social media and virtual presence. 

• In the event of a closing lasting more than one week, we will share videos of staff doing 

storytimes (and possibly other programs) on social media channels. 

• Updates about the closure and library’s efforts will be regularly communicated through the 

website, email, and social media channels. 

Staffing to Implement these Services 

• We are ready to purchase additional eMaterials, that can be restricted to East Greenbush 

Community Library patrons only, once the decision to close is made. 

• Essential staff have been identified and will be in regular contact during the closure to ensure 

services are working as intended. Every seven days, this team will meet and a determination will 

be made whether a longer closure is required. 

• Library staff will be given the proper equipment, as needed, to ensure phone calls and emails 

can be answered.  

• Most staff will be asked to work from home on ongoing or future library projects during a 

closure.  

• Library staff will collaborate using Microsoft Teams software and other remote work tools as 

necessary. 

• The library may temporarily redirect phone service to a library staff member for troubleshooting 

issues with digital collections access, handling research requests, and responding to questions 

from the public. 

• The director will work closely with the Upper Hudson Library System, department heads, and 

library board to put together a phased re-opening plan. 

 



East Greenbush Community Library - DRAFT 
Board of Trustees - Administrative Committee Minutes 
April 10, 2020 
 
In Attendance by videoconference: 
Lynne Oudekerk (chair), Bob West, Michael Poost, Jill Dugas Hughes 
Absent: Kevin McCann 
 
1.  Coronavirus Update 
Background:  Jill provided an update on library operations, staff actions, and future plans in 
light of the coronavirus pandemic.  
Library Operations - The library building fully closed on March 15 with no date certain for 
reopening. This has necessitated many changes as the library seeks to meet the needs of the 
community virtually. Members of the public can now apply for a library card online, the website 
has been updated to provide COVID-19 information and to highlight available digital magazines, 
books, movies, resources.  The website also offers “tech talk” tutorials to those seeking 
guidance on accessing digital resources, and provides opportunities for community members to 
communicate with staff via chat, email and by phone. The library’s social media presence is 
frequently updated, and now offers virtual story times, book clubs, youth activities, virtual 
museum tours, and links to other resources. In addition, the library emails a weekly newsletter 
to community members.  
Staffing – Most library have been working remotely since March 15th.  Paul has been working 
on site to maintain the building. Four part-time staff have opted not to work for the library 
during this closure due to other personal obligations.  These four staff are not being paid during 
their break in service, but all other staff are receiving their regular pay for time worked.  
Staff have made use of existing software (Microsoft Office Teams) to coordinate staff 
communication.  Jill feels that staff communication is excellent and that supervisors are closely 
overseeing staff in their departments.  
Future Plans – The library has adjusted expenditures to accommodate needs during this 
extraordinary time, but is still within the budget for the current year. For example, the library 
purchased five Chromebooks for staff working remotely who did not have a computer at home. 
In addition, staff have been reallocating collection purchases to ensure more digital resources 
are available to community members. The library will also be purchasing a fogger machine to 
sanitize hard surfaces.  In addition to budget changes, Jill has updated the library’s Emergency 
Closing Policy, Continuation of Service Plan, and Reopening Plan for Board consideration. We 
also reviewed the Open Meetings Law requirements in light of current social distancing 
requirements.  
Action: The library is self-insured for unemployment insurance, a decision that was made by the 
board several years ago. Funds to support unemployment claims are incorporated in the 
operational contingency fund, but are not specifically named in that account. While there is no 
plan to lay off staff this calendar year, the board might wish to clearly identify an 
unemployment insurance fund within the operational contingency fund.  
The committee refers to the Board for consideration at our April meeting the revised 
Emergency Closing Policy.  



 
 
Financial Review/ Audit Interviews 
Background:  Jill received a proposal for audit/ financial review services from Bryans & 
Gramuglia which was forwarded to committee members for review and comment. The cost for 
a GAP-compliant audit for the 2019 year is $6,500. A review of our financial records would be 
$3,500. Their proposal holds these costs for the 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023 fiscal year 
audits/reviews 
Action: The Audit Committee recommends that we retain Bryans & Garmuglia to audit the 
library’s 2019 financial records.  
 
2.  Succession Plan 
Background: There was no report on the Succession Plan.  
Action: Based on feedback from the February Board meeting, Lynne will draft a second version, 
including a trustee recruitment document, for consideration by the Admin Comm at our May 
meeting.  

 
3.  Schodack Contract Negotiations 
Background: There was no report on Schodack Contract Negotiations.  
Action:  Jill and Michael will prepare funding formula options for consideration at the May 
Admin Comm meeting.  

 
4.  Construction Grant 
Background:  There was no report on the Construction Grant.  
Action: Jill and Michael will meet to develop a plan for completion of the grant work by the 
grant’s end date of 6/30/2021. They will propose sources of match funding for each project and 
will recommend whether or not the library should request grant funding from the Friends for 
any part of this grant. They will also make recommendations re future grant requests. 
 
 
5.  Long Term Plan/ Strategic Plan 
Background:  It was determined that the Strategic Plan would be deferred to 2021.   
Action:  None required.  
  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

DRAFT REVISIONS- 4/15/2020 

 
DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY POLICY  
 
 

EMERGENCY CLOSING POLICY 
 

Under emergency conditions, as determined by the Director an emergency closing may 

be necessary the library may need to close, reduce hours, declare stand-by alerts, reduce 

staff on site, and/or direct staff to work remotely.  “Emergency conditions” and ensuing 

action shall be determined by the Director or, in the absence of the Director, by the 

Senior Person in Charge on duty. In the absence of the Director, In the event of the latter, 

the Senior Person in Charge on duty shall make every effort to contact him/her the 

Director before closing.  If the Director is unavailable, the Senior Person in Charge on 

duty is authorized to close the library.  The Board President shall be timely notified of the 

emergency actions taken by the Director (or person acting in their place). 
 

 

If the Library closes because of extreme weather conditions or other emergency, 

employees that had been scheduled to work during that time will be credited with time as 

if worked, with the exception of those employees who had previous time off approved.  

Approved time off shall supersede any credited time provided as a result of an emergency 

closure. 

 

If the Library is impacted by a community emergency situation forcing closure, reduced 

staffing, stand-by alerts, a shift to remote operations, or other significant change to library  

operations, the Director shall enact a contingency operations plan as soon as practicable, 

and in the best interests of safety and the library community.  Consultation with 

appropriate local and state authorities and fellow community partners will be included, as 

deemed appropriate by the Director and Board President. 

 

The Director and Board President shall maintain ongoing communication to monitor the 

best approach to address safety and operational concerns during states of emergency, and 

shall timely involve the full Board of such communications.   
 

 

The Director or Person in Charge may declare a standby alert (see below). 

 

Procedures: 

• Patrons should be evacuated.   

• In the case of children with no way home, the Person in Charge will try to contact the 

parents and stay until the children are picked up.  Staff and Child(ren) must remain 

outside until the building is cleared.  If parents cannot be located, the Police will be 

called.   

• A sign on the front door will be posted explaining why the library is closed and when it is 

expected to re-open.   



 

 

• Scheduled programs and any meeting room activities will be cancelled.  Program 

contacts, meeting room contacts, literacy volunteers and staff who are scheduled to work 

must be called and informed of the decision to close.   

• The telephone system “Day Menu 100” message must be changed to state the reason for 

the closing and when the library is expected to re-open (see Telephone System 

instructions). 

 

 

 

STANDBY ALERT 
During a standby alert staff will remain available for recall to work at either 1pm or 5 pm.  

For example: 

• If the library closes at 10:30 am, staff would be called by 12 noon to return to work at 1pm.   

• If the library closed at 2 pm, staff would be called by 4 pm to report to work at 5 pm.   

• If the staff is not called by 4 pm it will be assumed that the library will not reopen that 

evening.   

• A staff notification chain will be coordinated by the Director or Senior Person in Charge on 

duty.     

 

 

 


